

BYLAW AMENDMENT 1

TITLE: To specify that selection of meeting locations shall take into consideration the likelihood of discriminatory treatment in the form of denial of medical services due to ethnicity, race, gender, sexual orientation, and/or reproductive status.

Bylaw 3-5. Meetings: Location.

No meeting shall be held in any location where any delegates are likely to experience discriminatory treatment, which shall include the denial of medical services due to a delegate's ethnicity, race, gender, sexual orientation, and/or reproductive status.

Impact Statement

Bylaw 3 governs the conduct of the NEA Representative Assembly. Bylaw 3-5 currently provides that no meeting shall be held in any location where any delegates are likely during the course of the meeting to experience discriminatory treatment. If adopted, the amendment would add language specifying that the term "discriminatory treatment" shall include the denial of medical services due to a delegate's ethnicity, race, gender, sexual orientation, and/or reproductive status.

The Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules believes the intent of the proposed amendment is to make it clear that NEA considers denial of medical services based on the specified delegate demographics to be discrimination within the scope of Bylaw 3-5's prohibition, and that the RA may not be sited at a location where such discrimination against RA delegates is likely. Because the current Bylaw is already worded broadly to prohibit holding the RA at a location where "delegates are likely to experience discriminatory treatment," the Committee does not believe the amendment would change the intended scope of the Bylaw. However, because there are now several states in which routine medical services for women and transgender individuals are no longer provided or are more difficult to obtain, implementation of the proposed amendment will require consideration of additional legal information in making decisions about where the RA may be located. In addition, if the amendment passes, additional review of already contracted sites will be completed to determine if the RA can still be held in those locations.

Submitted by: 50 Delegates

Contact person: Stephen Hogan, Illinois, Stephen.Hogan@ieane.org

STANDING RULE AMENDMENT 1

WITHDRAWN

STANDING RULE AMENDMENT 2

TITLE: To require NEA to maintain a website for delegate questions and answers on proposed and pending measures, and to further provide that delegate use of the website to receive answers to questions shall satisfy any requirement to access the World of Information prior to making a request for information on the RA floor.

Rule 3. Order of Business and Debate; New Section: World of Information

The NEA shall maintain a World of Information webpage as a part of Delegate Resources accessible to all delegates no later than two months prior to the convening of the Representative Assembly and throughout the RA. The website will permit delegates to post questions about proposed and pending measures and the questions will be answered online by designated personnel. Delegates who post questions to which answers are provided will have fulfilled any requirement for consulting the World of Information prior to raising a point of information on the RA floor.

Impact Statement

NEA Standing Rule 3.B states that “The annual session of the Representative Assembly shall be conducted in accordance with provisions of the NEA Constitution, Bylaws, and these Standing Rules. Matters not specifically governed in these documents shall be governed by *Robert’s Rules of Order Newly Revised.*” Under *Robert’s Rules*, requests for information rise to the top of the speaking order.

In 2017, NEA established an information booth, known as the “World of Information,” where delegates could ask questions and get answers about items up for debate prior to consideration on the floor. Delegates could then use the information received in their talking points in speaking for or against the motion, rather than using their time to make a request for information from the floor. In subsequent years, the body suspended the rules to require delegates to seek answers at the World of Information before making a request on the floor. In 2022, an amendment to codify this requirement was withdrawn prior to consideration by the body.

Since 2017, the World of Information has expanded to become a one stop shop for delegate questions. In 2020, the World of Information was converted to an online platform to coincide with the virtual Representative Assembly held that year. This format was continued in 2021 for that year’s virtual RA, and in 2022 for the in-person RA with a virtual option. The online version of the World of Information allows delegates to use an electronic form to submit questions. Receipt of the form triggers creation of a “case” in NEA’s online tracking system. Triage staff quickly review each question and either respond directly or assign the question to content staff to respond. Responses go back to delegates via email with the response also saved in the tracking system. In 2022, the World of Information responded to over 400 questions from delegates, with the most frequent questions relating to business items, the NEA budget, voting and elections, and parliamentary inquiries. The system also receives numerous questions related to one individual or a small group of delegates, and questions not directly related to RA business. The committee believes the intent of this amendment is to post only those questions and answers significantly related to RA business.

The Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules understands that NEA’s intention is to continue the online World of Information in the future, regardless of the RA format. No decisions have been made at this time as to whether an in-person booth option will also be available. CCB understands that the electronic version allows for greater tracking of questions and responses, and for compiling of responses to frequently asked questions.

If adopted, the amendment would require NEA to maintain a website for delegate questions and answers. The amendment also would specify that any delegate receiving an answer via this method would be deemed to have satisfied any requirement to visit the World of Information prior to making a request on the floor. The Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules interprets this amendment to permit NEA to continue to use the current electronic system of intake and then posting questions and responses to a website (such as the NEA RA site) which is accessible to all delegates. The Committee believes this method would be preferable to asking delegates to post questions directly to a visible site, as the World of Information receives many questions that do not pertain to RA business and would not need to be posted for all delegates to review.

If the amendment is adopted, NEA will open the World of Information intake two months prior to the start of the 2024 Representative Assembly as the proposed amendment requires.

Submitted by: State Delegation

Contact person: Jane Stern, Maryland

STANDING RULE AMENDMENT 3

TITLE: To allow RA delegates to contact makers of NBIs through a secure NEA system that will not reveal individual delegates' emails.

Rule 6. New Business Items

Section B. Format

Each new business item shall be printed accompanied by the name of the submitting NEA, state, or local group and shall be accompanied by the name and state of the contact person. Whenever a proposed Representative Assembly action is published, it shall include the name, ~~and state.~~ A secure way to contact the maker that will not reveal individual delegates' contact information will be provided. ~~with the express written consent of the contact person, the email address of said contact person.~~ New business items may include a separate rationale/background statement of no more than 40 words. Any new business item that contains an acronym or abbreviated term shall include the complete name for the acronym followed by the acronym in parenthesis when it is first used in that new business item.

Impact Statement

NEA Standing Rule 6.B currently provides for the publication in the NEA *RA Today* of the email information of RA delegates who have proposed NBIs and who consent to the publication of their email. In practice, due to the broad distribution of the NEA *RA Today*, RA delegate emails have been shared beyond the intended audience of RA delegates to members of the general public.

Collecting and publishing maker emails has been standard practice since adoption of an amendment to the Standing Rules in 2016. In recent years, and in particular in 2021, the publication of RA delegate email information has resulted in makers of NBIs receiving floods of emails, sometimes containing extremely offensive and threatening messages.

In order to protect RA delegates, NEA will create a secure system that will allow delegates to contact each other about RA business without publicly disclosing their email information. The proposed amendment would strike language allowing NEA to publish maker emails with consent and would replace it with language referencing the new secure contact system. If adopted, the amendment would go into effect at the 2024 Representative Assembly.

Submitted by: Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules

Contact person: Elizabeth Nahl, Oregon, ElizabethNahl@comcast.net

STANDING RULE AMENDMENT 4

TITLE: To set June 15 as the date for filing of candidates for at-large seats on the NEA Board, and to update voting procedures on amendments to the Constitution and Bylaws.

Rule 11. Elections Conducted at the Representative Assembly

A. Procedures

6. Nominations

~~At the first business meeting of the Representative Assembly, nominations shall take place, as appropriate in each year, for the elections provided for by Article IV, Section 3; Article V, Section 1; and Article VI, Section 1 of the Constitution. Nominations shall be made in writing, via a form provided by the NEA Center for Governance, no later than 4:00pm in the time zone of the host city on June 15.~~

- (a) Nominations, as appropriate in each year, shall be ~~made~~ announced to the body during the first business session in the following order...
- (c) Consistent with the requirements set forth in Rule 11.B.7, each candidate shall be nominated ~~from the floor by~~ written motion of a delegate to the Representative Assembly. When all nominations have been ~~made~~ announced, each candidate or designee shall have an allotment of time to address the Representative Assembly. Candidates for the office of president shall be given five (5) minutes for this purpose. Candidates for vice-president, secretary-treasurer, and the Executive Committee shall be given three (3) minutes. Candidates for at-large positions on the Board of Directors shall be given two (2) minutes.

7. Voting Procedures

Elections shall be by printed ballot by the delegates to the Representative Assembly.

The names of the candidates shall be placed on the first ballot in the order determined by lottery by the candidates or their designees ~~immediately following the close of nominations at the Representative Assembly~~; on subsequent ballots the order also shall be determined by lottery by the candidates or their designees.

The candidates or their designees, ~~no later than thirty (30) minutes after the nomination and acceptance speeches have concluded~~, shall assemble at a place on a date and time designated by the chairperson of the Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules...

- (i) Voting on amendments shall be open on a date and for a window of time from 8:30 a.m. to 12 noon on the day and at such place or places as the President shall designate and announce in advance to delegates. Each delegate shall receive a URL linked to their unique ballot at the beginning of the voting window. ...

IMPACT STATEMENT:

Standing Rule 11 sets out the procedures for the conduct of officer elections and voting on amendments to the NEA Constitution and Bylaws at the Representative Assembly. The current rules allow for nomination of at-large candidates at the first business session, with lotteries for speaking order and placement on the ballot conducted following nominations. Voting for officers and on amendments is conducted via secret ballot at polling places set up in the convention center.

In 2020, 2021, and 2022, the NEA Board adopted rules that set the nomination deadline for at-large candidates at June 15. If adopted, the amendment would add the earlier nomination deadline for at-large candidates to the Standing Rules. The amendment would also change the method of voting on amendments to the constitution and bylaws to an electronic system for all delegates.

If the amendment is adopted, the Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules (CCBR), and the Elections Committee will continue processes set in place in 2020, 2021, and 2022, starting in 2024. The number of at-large seats will be announced no later than June 1 of each year, and filing forms will be sent to all affiliates and caucuses and posted on the delegate website. Filings will be due by June 15. CCBR and the Elections Committee

will conduct a virtual lottery (via Zoom or similar platform) for nomination order, speech order, and placement on the ballot.

Delegates will continue to vote in officer elections via secret ballot at polling places in the convention center. Voting on amendments to the constitution and bylaws will take place via a secure electronic voting system (such as simplyvoting.com). After floor debate on amendments, each delegate will receive an email with a unique link to their ballot. The voting window will remain open for a period of time determined and announced to the delegates by the chair. Results will be announced to the body during the Representative Assembly.

Submitted by: Committee on Constitution, Bylaws, and Rules

Contact person: Elizabeth Nahl, Oregon, ElizabethNahl@comcast.net